UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Department of Justice

Antitrust Division

1401 H Street, N.W.

Suite 3000 CASE NO.: 1.07-¢cv-00640
Washington, D.C. 20530,

Plaintiff, JUDGE: Hon. Royce C. Lamberth

V.
DECK TYPE: Antitrust
CEMEX, S.A.B.deC.V.,

Av. Ricardo Margain Zozaya #325,
Colonia del Valle Campestre, DATE STAMP:
Garza Garcia, Nuevo Ledn, Mexico 66265

and
RINKER GROUP LIMITED
Level 8, Tower B, 799 Pacific Highway
Chatsworth, NSW 2067, Australia,

Defendants.

AMENDED COMPLAINT

Plaintiff United States of America (“United States™), acting under the direction of the
Attorney General of the United States, brings this civil antitrust action to obtain equitable and
other relief against defendants, Cemex, S.A.B. de C.V. (“Cemex”} and Rinker Group Limited
(“Rinker”) to prevent Cemex’s proposed acquisition of Rinker. Plamtiff complains and alleges
as follows:

1 NATURE OF THE ACTION
1. On October 27, 2006, Cemex Australia Pty Ltd., an entity controlled by Cemex,

initiated a hostile cash tender offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares of Rinker. The total



enterprise value of the transaction offer when made on October 27, 2007, including Rinker’s
debt, was approximately $12 billion. The offer was due to expire on March 30, 2007, but Cemex
extended it until April 27, 2007.

2. On April 9, 2007, Cemex announced that it had signed an agreement with Rinker,
pursuant to which Cemex increased its offer to make the total enterprise value of the transaction,
including Rinker’s debt, approximately $15 billion. This offer expires on May 18, 2007, and it is
subject to the acquisition of 90 percent of Rinker’s shares. As part of the agreement, Rinker’s
Board of Directors unanimously agreed to recommend to its shareholders that they accept
Cemex’s increased offer at the higher price, in the absence of a superior proposal.

3. Cemex and Rinker both produce and distribute building materials, including,
among other things, ready mix concrete, aggregate, and concrete block, throughout the world.

4, The combination of Cemex and Rinker would create one of the world’s largest
building materials companies. Cemex’s proposed acquisition of Rinker would reduce the
number of significant suppliers of ready mix concrete in various metropolitan areas in Florida
and Arizona, of concrete block in several metropolitan areas in Florida, and of aggregate in
Tucson, Arizona.

5. The United States brings this action to prevent the proposed acquisition because it
would substantially lessen competition in the production and distribution of ready mix concrete
in the metropolitan areas of Fort Walton Beach/Panama City/Pensacola, Jacksonville, Orlando,
Tampa/St. Petersburg, Fort Myers/Naples, Florida, and the metropolitan areas of Flagstaff and
Tucson, Arizona. In addition, the acquisition would substantially lessen competition in the

production and distribution of concrete block in metropolitan Tampa/St. Petersburg and Fort



Myers/Naples, Florida. Finally, the acquisition would substantially lessen competition in the
production and distribution of aggregate in metropolitan Tucson, Arizona.
il. PARTIES TO THE PROPOSED TRANSACTION

6. Defendant Cemex is organized under the laws of the United Mexican States with
its principal place of business in Nuevo Ledn, Mexico. Cemex operates in the United States
through its wholly owned subsidiary, Cemex, Inc., which has its principal place of business in
Houston, Texas. In 2006, Cemex reported total sales of approximately $24.6 billion.

7. Cemex produces and distributes cement, ready mix concrete, aggregate, concrete
block, concrete pipe, and related building materials to customers in more than 50 countries.
Approximately 25 percent of Cemex’s revenues are earned in the United States. Cemex is the
largest United States supplier of ready mix concrete and cement and the seventh largest United
States supplier of aggregate.

8. Defendant Rinker is organized under the laws of Australia with its principal place
of business in Chatswood, Australia. Rinker operates in the United States through 1ts subsidiary,
Rinker Materials Corporation. Rinker Materials Corporation has its principal place of business
in West Palm Beach, Florida. In 2006, Rinker reported total sales of approximately $4 billion.

9. Rinker produces and distributes aggregate, ready mix concrete, cement, concrete
block, asphalt, concrete pipe, and other construction materials through its operations in the
United States and Australia. Approximately 80 percent of Rinker’s revenues are earned 1n the
United States. Rinker is the second largest United States supplier of ready mix concrete and the

fifth largest United States supplier of aggregate.



II. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

10. Plaintiff United States brings this action under Section 15 of the Clayton Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. § 25, to prevent and restrain defendants from violating Section 7 of the
Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18.

11. Defendants produce and distribute ready mix concrete, concrete block, and
aggregate in the flow of interstate commerce. Defendants’ activities in producing and
distributing these products substantially affect interstate commerce. This Court has subject
matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Section 12 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 22,
and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345.

12. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1391(d). Further,
defendants have consented to venue and personal jurisdiction in this judicial district.

IV. TRADE AND COMMERCE
A, The Relevant Product Markets
1. Ready Mix Concrete

13.  Ready mix concrete is a building material made up of a combination of cement,
fine and coarse aggregate, small amounts of chemical additives, and water. The amount of
cement added to a concrete mixture determines its strength, which is measured in pounds per
square inch (“psi”). Concrete with higher psi ratings is typically used for large state department
of transportation highway and bridge projects and high-rise buildings. Concrete with lower psi
ratings is typically used for residential and curb-and-gutter construction projects.

14.  Ready mix concrete is made at production facilities called batch plants. A batch
plant measures the precise amount of dry input products needed to manufacture a given type of
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concrete. The mixture is then dumped into a rotating drum mounted on a heavy duty truck.
Immediately before the truck departs the plant, a measured amount of water is added. Once the
water hits the dry mixture, an irreversible chemical reaction is triggered causing the product to
begin to set into a rigid building substance. The concrete components are mixed by the rotating
drum while the truck is being driven to the job site. At the job site, the concrete is poured
directly from the truck onto the project.

I5. Ready mix concrete is unique because it is pliable when freshly mixed, can be
molded into a variety of forms, and it is strong and permanent when hardened. For many
building applications, customers will not substitute other building materials, such as steel, wood,
or asphalt, for ready mix concrete. Steel is often not a substitute for ready mix concrete because
it cannot be poured and formed into smooth, regular planes. Wood is often not a substitute
because it does not have the structural strength to support heavy loads. Asphalt is often not a
substitute because it cannot be used for the structural portions of bridges, cannot be used for
buildings, and for certain applications cannot be used for highways.

16.  Ready mix concrete is sold pursuant to bids, which are based on extensive
specifications from the customer regarding, among other things, the amount of concrete, the
various strengths of concrete, and the size and timing of the concrete pours. The needs of the
customer can differ significantly by each project.

17.  Not all suppliers of ready mix concrete can service every kind of project. For
example, servicing certain types of “large projects,” such as large state department of
transportation highway and bridge building projects and high-rise building projects, requires

ready mix concrete suppliers to be able to provide: (a) a large number of cubic yards of concrete;
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(b) large daily pours of concrete, which require the concrete supplier to schedule trucks to arrive
continuously at a project; (c) concrete having multiple psi specifications; and (d) testing to nsure
the concrete meets project engineering specifications.

18.  Ifthe concrete does not meet the project specifications or the concrete is not
poured continuously, the customer may suffer substantial direct and consequential losses as a
result of defective concrete. Contractors building large projects carefully select suppliers to
minimize the chances of problems with the concrete.

19.  Purchasers of ready mix concrete for such large projects require that their
suppliers have: (a) multiple ready mix concrete plants in a geographic area; (b) the ability to
produce large amounts of concrete with multiple specifications; (c) backup plants; (d) a large
number of concrete trucks; (e) a sizeable and well-trained workforce; (f) the demonstrated ability
to service such a large project; and (g) considerable financial backing to remedy any problems
relating to defective concrete.

20. Each large project is bid separately and ready mix concrete suppliers can identify
the specific market conditions that apply to each large project, including the number of
competitors that potentially could service the project’s requirements. Ready mix concrete
suppliers can and do charge different prices to customers based on the particular project’s
requirements and the market conditions.

21. A small but significant post-acquisition increase in the price of ready mix concrete
that meets the bid specifications would not cause the purchasers of ready mix concrete for large

projects to substitute another building material in sufficient quantities, or to utilize a supplier of



ready mix concrete without the characteristics described in paragraph 19 above with sufficient
frequency so as to make such a price increase unprofitable.

22. Accordingly, the production, distribution, and sale of ready mix concrete for use
in large projects is a line of commerce and a relevant product market within the meaning of
Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

2. Concrete Block

23.  Concrete block is a construction material used to build exterior and interior walls
in residential and commercial structures. Concrete block comes in a variety of shapes and sizes.
Standard concrete blocks measure 8 inches by 8 inches by 16 inches and are composed of two
hollow squares joined to form a rectangle.

24.  Concrete block is produced by pouring concrete into molds and pressing the
molded blocks onto a conveyor belt for transport to a kiln for curing. Concrete blocks are then

delivered to storage yards for final hardening and storage.

25. In Florida, from Orlando south, the walls of residential structures are built almost
exclusively with concrete block. Wood is not a viable substitute because of its susceptibility to
termite and hurricane damage. Poured concrete walls (“tilt up” walls) are at least 10 percent
more expensive than concrete block, except where a large number of identical structures with
regular shapes are built on contiguous lots using a single mold. In addition, block made of
polyurethane is not an economically viable substitute because it is difficult to install and does not
withstand hurricane winds as well as concrete block.

26.  For nearly all residential construction applications in Florida, from Orlando south,
a small but significant post-acquisition increase in the price of concrete block would not cause
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the purchasers of concrete block to substitute another product in sufficient quantities so as to
make such a price increase unprofitable.

27. Accordingly, within the state of Florida, from Orlando south, the production and
distribution of concrete block is a line of commerce and a relevant product market within the

‘meaning of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.
3. Aggregate

28.  Aggregate is rock mined from either quarries or pits. Aggregate is crushed,
washed, and mixed with sand, cement, and water to produce ready mix concrete. It 15 also used
to make asphalt concrete for use in building roads. Different sizes of rock are needed to meet
different ready mix concrete and asphalt specifications.

29. There are no substitutes for aggregate because aggregate differs from other types
of stone products in its physical composition, functional characteristics, customary uses, and
pricing. It must meet the state departments of transportation or American Society of Testing
Materials’ specifications for the specific type of asphalt or ready mix concrete being produced.

30. A small but significant post-acquisition increase in the price of aggregate that
meets state departments of transportation and American Society of Testing Materials’
specifications for use in ready mix concrete and asphalt projects would not cause the purchasers
of such aggregate to substitute another product in sufficient quantities so as to make such a price
increase unprofitable,

31.  Accordingly, the production and distribution of aggregate that meets state

departments of transportation and American Society of Testing Materials’ specifications for use



in ready mix concrete and asphalt projects is a line of commerce and a relevant product market
within the meaning of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

B. The Relevant Geographic Markets

1. Ready Mix Concrete

32. The ready mix concrete needed for large projects, such as highways, bridges, and
high-rise buildings, is bid on a project-by-project basis. Ready mix concrete suppliers can
identify the specific market conditions that apply to each project, including the number of
competitors that potentially could service the location of the project. Ready mix concrete
suppliers charge different prices to customers based on the particular location of a project.

33, The suppliers with the ability to bid on large projects are those with plants located
within the metropolitan area in which the project is located. The cost of transporting ready mix
concrete is high compared to the value of the product. As concrete is hauled greater distances,
the transportation costs begin to diminish the profitability of a load of concrete. Therefore,
suppliers attempt to stay close to their baich plants to minimize the cost of hauling concrete.

34, Further, because concrete begins to set while being driven to the job site, it is
highly perishable. Therefore, contractors and state departments of transportation typically limit
the time concrete can spend in a truck to 90 minutes or less. This time may be even shorter in
hot weather conditions. This time period is measured from the moment the water hits the dry
concrete inputs in the truck until the concrete is poured out of the truck. Because of this 90-
minute window, contractors and state departments of transportation typically allow only a

portion—often only 30 minutes—to be consumed by driving time. If the concrete is driven for a



longer period of time, there may be insufficient time for the concrete to be completely poured
onto the project within the 90-minute window.

35. Due to its perishability and the cost of hauling concrete, depending on the size of
the city and the associated traffic, the distance concrete can reasonably be transported for large
projects, such as highways, bridges, and high-rise buildings in a metropolitan area is himited to
the metropolitan area and, in many cases, to only portions of that area.

36. The relevant geographic markets, within the meaning of Section 7 of the Clayton
Act, consist of the locations within the metropolitan areas of Fort Walton Beach/Panama
City/Pensacola, Jacksonville, Orlando, Tampa/St. Petersburg, Fort Myers/Naples, Florida, and
the metropolitan areas of Flagstaff and Tucson, Arizona, to which Cemex and Rinker are among
a small namber of firms that compete to supply ready mix concrete for large projects.

2. Concrete Block

37. The cost of transporting concrete block is high compared to the value of the
product. Manufacturers or third-party haulers deliver concrete block to customer job sites by
truck. As delivery distance increases, the ratio of transportation costs to the price of concrete
block increases. In urban areas, this most often confines the transport of concrete block to the
metropolitan area.

38. A small but significant post-acquisition increase in the price of concrete block in
metropolitan Tampa/St. Petersburg would not cause customers of concrete block to procure
concrete block from outside this area in sufficient quantities so as to make such a price increase

unprofitable.
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39. Accordingly, metropolitan Tampa/St. Petersburg is a relevant geographic market
within the meaning of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

40.  Similarly, a small but significant post-acquisition increase in the price of concrete
block in metropolitan Fort Myers/Naples would not cause customers of concrete block to procure

concrete block from outside this area so as to make such a price increase unprofitable.

41.  Accordingly, metropolitan Fort Myers/Naples is a relevant geographic market

within the meaning of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.
3. Aggregate

42. Aggregate is a bulky, heavy, and relatively low-cost product. The cost of
transporting aggregate is high compared to the value of the product.

43. Suppliers cannot economically transport aggregate to the Tucson area from
locations outside of metropolitan Tucson. First, transportation costs limit the distance aggregate
can be economically transported from an aggregate pit to a ready mix concrete plant (for
aggregate pits that are not co-located with ready mix concrete plants) or from an aggregate pit to
the job site. Second, the location of other aggregate suppliers limits the distance that aggregate
can economically travel. Finally, in metropolitan Tucson, the ready mix concrete plants are
typically co-located with the aggregate pits to minimize transportation costs.

44. A small but significant post-acquisition increase in the price of aggregate in
metropolitan Tucson would not cause customers of aggregate to procure aggregate in sufficient
quantities from outside this area so as to make such a price increase unprofitable.

45.  Accordingly, metropolitan Tucson is a relevant geographic market within the
meaning of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.
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C. Anticompetitive Effects
1. The Proposed Transaction Will Harm Competition in the Markets for

Ready Mix Concrete, Concrete Block, and Aggregate in the Specified
Geographic Markets.

a. Ready Mix Concrete

46. Vigorous price competition between Cemex and Rinker in the production and sale
of ready mix concrete has benefitted customers.

47.  The competitors that could constrain Cemex and Rinker from raising prices for
ready mix concrete {0 be used on large projects, such as highways, bridges, and high-rise
buildings, are limited to those that meet the requirements imposed by purchasers for large ready
mix concrete projects.

48, The proposed acquisition will eliminate the competition between Cemex and
Rinker and reduce the number of suppliers of ready mix concrete that might bid on certain types
of large projects, such as highways, bridges, and high-rise buildings, from three to two in
metropolitan Tampa/St. Petersburg and metropolitan Fort Walion Beach/Panama City/Pensacola,
Florida, and in metropolitan Tucson, Arizona. The proposed acquisition will elininate the
competition between Cemex and Rinker and reduce the number of suppliers of ready mix
concrete that might bid on certain types of large projects, such as highways, bridges and high-rise
buildings, from four to three generally, and in some areas or for some projects from three to two,
in metropolitan Orlando, metropolitan Fort Myers/Naples, and metropolitan Jacksonville,
Florida. Further, the proposed acquisition will substantially increase the likelihood that Cemex
will unilaterally increase the price of ready mix concrete to a significant number of customers in

these areas.
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49,  In metropolitan Flagstaff, Arizona, the proposed acquisition will eliminate the
competition between Cemex and Rinker and reduce the number of suppliers of ready mix
concrete that might bid on certain types of large projects, such as highways, bridges, and high-
rise buildings, from two to one.

50.  The response of other ready mix concrete producers in the relevant arcas would
not be sufficient to constrain a unilateral exercise of market power by Cemex after the
acquisition.

51.  In addition, a combined Cemex and Rinker would have the ability to increase
prices for ready mix concrete to certain customers. Ready mix concrete producers know the
locations of their competitors’ batch plants and the distance from their own plants and their
competitors’ plants to a customer’s job site. Generally, because of transportation costs, the
farther a supplier’s closest competitor is from a job site, the less price competition that suppher
faces for that project. Post-acquisition, in instances where Cemex and Rinker plants were the
closest plants to a customer’s project, the combined firm, using the knowledge of its competitors’
plant locations, would be able to charge such customers higher prices in instances in which the
next closest ready mix concrete supplier’s plant is farther from the customer’s project than were
the Cemex and Rinker plants.

52.  Without the competitive constraint of competition between Cemex and Rinker,
post-acquisition Cemex will have a greater ability to exercise market power by raising prices to
customers for whom Rinker and Cemex were their closest and second-closest sources of ready

mix concrete.
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53. Further, Cemex’s elimination of Rinker as an independent competitor in the
production and distribution of ready mix concrete is likely to facilitate anticompetitive
coordination among the remaining producers that can bid on large projects in each relevant
geographic market. Mixes of the same strength of concrete are relatively standard and
homogeneous, and producers have access to information about competitors’ output, capacity, and
costs. Moreover, participants in ready mix concrete markets have successfully engaged in
anticompetitive coordination in the past. Given these market conditions, eliminating one of the
few ready mix concrete suppliers that can bid on large projects is likely to further increase the
ability of the remaining competitors to successfully coordinate.

54.  The transaction will therefore substantially lessen competition in the market for
ready mix concrete in the affected areas, which is likely to lead to higher prices for the ultimate
consumers of such products, in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

b. Concrete Block

55.  Vigorous price competition between Cemex and Rinker in the production and sale
of concrete block has benefitted customers.

56.  In metropolitan Tampa/St. Petersburg, Florida, the proposed acquisition will
eliminate the competition between Cemex and Rinker. The acquisition will give Cemex control
of approximately 60 percent of the concrete block capacity in metropolitan Tampa/St. Petersburg.
The proposed acquisition will substantially increase the likelihood that Cemex will unilaterally
increase the price of concrete block to a significant number of customers in metropolitan

Tampa/St. Petersburg.
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57. In metropolitan Fort Myers/Naples, Florida, the proposed acquisition will
eliminate the competition between Cemex and Rinker. The acquisition will give Cemex control
of approximately 69 percent of the concrete block capacity in metropolitan Fort Myers/N aples.
The proposed écquisition will substantially increase the likelihood that Cemex will unilaterally
increase the price of concrete block to a significant number of customers in metropolitan Fort
Myers/Naples.

58. In addition, in each of these markets, a combined Cemex and Rinker would have
the ability to increase prices for concrete block to certain customers. As with ready mix concrete,
concrete block manufacturers know the locations of their competitors’ plants and the distance
from their own plants and their competitors’ plants to a customer’s job site. Generally, because
of transportation costs, the farther a supplier’s closest competitor is from the job site, the less
price competition that supplier faces for that project. Post-acquisition, in instances where Cemex
and Rinker plants were the closest plants to a customer’s project, the combined firm, using the
knowledge of its competitors’ plant locations, would be able to charge such customers higher
prices in instances in which the next closest concrete block supplier’s plant is farther from the
customer’s project than were the Cemex and Rinker plants.

59.  Without the constraint of competition between Cemex and Rinker, post-
acquisition Cemex will have a greater ability to exercise market power by raising prices to
customers for whom Rinker and Cemex were their closest and second-closest sources of concrete
block supply.

60.  Further, Cemex’s elimination of Rinker as an independent competitor in the

production and distribution of concrete block is likely to facilitate anticompetitive coordination
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among the remaining concrete block producers in each relevant geographic market. Concrete
block is 2 homogeneous commodity and producers have access to information about competitors’
output, capacity, and costs. Given these market conditions, eliminating one of the few concrete
block competitors is likely to further increase the ability of the remaining competitors to
successfully coordinate.

61.  The response of other concrete block producers in the relevant areas would not be
sufficient to constrain a unilateral exercise of market power by Cemex after the acquisition.

62.  The transaction will therefore substantially lessen competition in the market for
concrete block, which is likely to lead to higher prices for the ultimate consumers of such
products, in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

c. Aggregate

63.  Vigorous price competition between Cemex and Rinker in the production and sale
of aggregate in metropolitan Tucson, Arizona has benefitted customers.

64.  In metropolitan Tucson, the proposed acquisition will eliminate the competition
between Cemex and Rinker. The proposed acquisition will also reduce the number of significant
suppliers of aggregate from five to four in the Tucson market generally and, depending on the
location of the aggregate pit and the transportation costs, the number of suppliers could be
reduced to as few as three or two. Further, the proposed acquisition will substantially increase
the likelihood that Cemex will unilaterally increase the price of aggregate to a significant number
of customers.

65.  Further, Cemex’s elimination of Rinker as an independent competitor in the

production and distribution of aggregate is likely to facilitate anticompetitive coordination among
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the remaining aggregate producers in Tucson. Aggregate is a homogeneous commodity and
producers have access to information about competitors’ output, capacity, and costs. Given these
market conditions, eliminating one of the few aggregate competitors is likely to further increase
the ability of the remaining competitors to successfully coordinate.

66. The transaction will therefore substantially lessen competition in the market for
aggregate, which is likely to lead to higher prices for the ultimate consumers of such products, in
violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act.

2. Entry is Not Likely to Deter the Exercise of Market Power.
a. Ready Mix Concrete

67.  Successful entry or expansion into the production and distribution of ready mix
concrete for large projects is difficult, time-consuming, and costly. In order to be able to bid on
large projects, such as highways, bridges, and high-rise buildings, it is not sufficient simply to be
able to produce ready mix concrete. In order to bid on these large projects, a new entrant or an
existing producer must have multiple ready mix concrete plants in a geographic area, the ability
to produce large amounts of concrete with multiple specifications, backup plants, a large number
of concrete trucks, a sizeable and well-trained workforce, the demonstrated ability and reputation
to be able to service such a large project and considerable financial backing to remedy any
problems relating to defective concrete.

68. In addition, opening a ready mix concrete batch plant in a metropolitan area is
difficult because of the need to acquire the land for the site of such a batch plant. The location of
a batch plant is very important because of the perishability of the ready mix concrete. In Flonida,

batch plants typically require approximately three to five acres of land to comply with
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environmental and land use regulations. Finding the appropriate site for such a plant close
enough to the large projects is difficult, because in metropolitan areas such land is already
utilized or does not have the appropriate zoning. Obtaining the land use permits or zoning
variances is difficult, costly, and time-consuming, as well. Furthermore, in addition to building
the new batch plant, an entrant would also have to secure sources of cement and aggregate, which
are inputs into ready mix concrete.

69. Therefore, entry or expansion by any other firm so that it is able to bid on large
ready mix concrete projects will not be timely, likely, or sufficient to defeat an anticompetitive
price increase.

b. Concrete Block

70. In metropolitan Tampa/St. Petersburg and metropolitan Fort Myers/Naples,
successful entry or expansion into the production and distribution of concrete block is difficult,
time consuming, and costly. Properly zoned parcels of land of the necessary size (at least eight
acres) are scarce. Locating or securing proper zoning, development, building, air quality, and
environmental permits and building a concrete block plant can take more than two years.
Building a new concrete block plant costs approximately $8 to $12 million.

71. Therefore, entry or expansion by any other firm into the concrete block markets in
metropolitan Tampa/St. Petersburg and metropolitan Fort Myers/Naples will not be timely,
likely, or sufficient to defeat an anticompetitive price increase.

c. Aggregate
72. Successful entry or expansion into the production and distribution of aggregate is

difficult, time-consuming, and costly. Successful entry or expansion into the production and
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distribution of aggregate in metropolitan Tucson, Arizona is difficult because there are very few
new sites on which to locate aggregate pits. First, for aggregate used on transportation projects,
the aggregate pits must be located in a river bed or wash. Second, aggregate is a finite resource
in metropolitan Tucson, and several aggregate pits have been depleted in the past several years.
Third, requests to open new aggregate pits often face fierce public opposition.

73. In addition, Arizona state and federal zoning, air quality, and other permitting
process requirements must be met. Obtaining the necessary environmental and land-use permits
for aggregate pits is difficult in Tucson.

74.  Further, the Arizona Aggregate Mine Reclamation Act requires financial
assurances and other requirements for companies seeking to open a new aggregate pit, continuing
to operating an existing aggregate pit, or expanding an existing aggregate pit.

75. Therefore, entry or expansion by any other firm into the aggregate market in
metropolitan Tucson would not be timely, likely, or sufficient to defeat an anticompetitive price
increase.

V. VIOLATIONS ALLEGED

76.  The proposed acquisition of Rinker by Cemex would substantially lessen
competition and tend to create a monopoly in interstate trade and commerce in violation of
Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18.

77. Unless restrained, the transaction will have the following anticompetitive effects,

among others:

19



actual and potential competition between Cemex and Rinker in the
production and distribution of ready mix concrete, concrete block, and
aggregate in the relevant geographic markets will be eliminated;
competition generally in the production and distribution of ready mix
concrete, concrete block, and aggregate in the relevant geographic markets
will be substantially lessened; and

prices for ready mix concrete, concrete block, and aggregate in the relevant

geographic markets will likely increase.

VI. REQUEST FOR RELIEF

78.  Plaintiff requests that:

a.

Cemex’s proposed acquisition of Rinker be adjudged and decreed to be
untawful and in violation of Section 7 of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18;
defendants and all persons acting on their behalf be permanently enjoined
and restrained from consummating the proposed acquisition or from
entering into or carrying out any contract, agreement, plan, or
understanding, the effect of which would be to combine Cemex with the
operations of Rinker;

plaintiff be awarded its costs for this action; and
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- d. plaintiff receive such other and further relief as the Court deems just and

proper.

Respectfully submitted,
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